
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
Executive Committee Meeting 

 
Thursday, November 21, 2024 

1:00 – 2:00 pm 
 

Hybrid Meeting 
 

Los Angeles Public Library - Central Library 
630 W. 5th St., 3rd Floor 

 
Alternate Location: 

Azusa City Library, 729 N Dalton Ave, Azusa, CA 91702 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

All items may be considered for action. 
 

1. Opening        Hilda LohGuan 
a. Chairperson’s Welcome 
b. Roll Call 

 
2. Public Comment 

Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Committee on 
any item of SCLC business. 

 
3. Consent Calendar       Hilda LohGuan 

(ACTION) 
All items on the consent calendar may be approved by a single motion. Any 
Committee member may request an item be removed from the consent calendar 
and placed on the agenda for discussion. 

a. Minutes of the October 24, 2024, Executive Committee regular meeting 
 

4. Adoption of Agenda       Hilda LohGuan 
 

5. Budget Status Report for FY 2024/25    Andy Beck 
(DISCUSSION) 

 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86260628915?pwd=EgBqW4pa8CJbE4yQIsZb5Y36T4JYEe.1 

Meeting ID: 862 6062 8915 
Passcode: 667897 

 
  

   

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86260628915?pwd=EgBqW4pa8CJbE4yQIsZb5Y36T4JYEe.1


6. SCLC Annual Planning Meeting     Christine Powers 
(ACTION) 

 
7. Other         Hilda LohGuan 

“...that is, matters initiated in the present meeting.” Robert’s Rules of Order, 
Revised, III, p.21.  Limited by Brown Act to discussion only. 

 
8. Adjournment        Hilda LohGuan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Southern California Library Cooperative 
222 E. Harvard St. • Glendale, California 91205 

 (626) 283-5949 • Fax (626) 283-5949 
Website : http://www.socallibraries.org • E-mail : sclcadmin@socallibraries.org 

2



ACTION ITEMS 

Meeting: ________SCLC Executive Committee Meeting_____________________ 

Date: ___________November 21, 2024__________________________________ 

Library: ___________________________________________________________ 

Name: ____________________________________________________________

Signature: ______________________ 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Date: ______________________ 

Agenda Item:  ___________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

Agenda Item:  ____________________ 

_____ Aye  _____ Motion 

_____ Nay  _____ Second 

_____ Abstain 

3



Southern California Library Cooperative 
Executive Committee Meeting 

Thursday, October 24, 2024 

Via Zoom 

Alternative Meeting Locations: 
Alhambra Library, 101 S 1st St, Alhambra, CA 91801 

Azusa City Library, 729 North Dalton Ave., Azusa, CA 91702 
Camarillo Public Library, 4101 Las Posas Rd, Camarillo, CA 93010 
Commerce Public Library, 5655 Jillson St., Commerce, CA 90040 

Long Beach Public Library, 200 W Broadway, Long Beach, CA 90802 
Santa Monica Main Library, 601 Santa Monica Blvd., Santa Monica, CA 90401 

Simi Valley Public Library, 2969 Tapo Cyn Rd., Simi Valley, CA 93063 
Temple City Library, 5939 Golden West Ave, Temple City, CA 91780. 

MINUTES - Draft 

Attendance  Other 
Bautista, Sonia – CMM  Beck, Andy – SCLC 
Behle, Kelly – SVPL  Powers, Christine – SCLC 
Cuyugan, Erica – SAM Snodgrass, Nerissa – SCLC 
DeLeon, Cathy – LBPL Walker, Wayne – SCLC 
Hassen, Leila – AZU  Winslow, Nikki – ALT  
LohGuan, Hilda, Chair – AHM 
Nasr, Mandy – CAM 
Walker-Lanz, Jesse – LACo 

1. Opening Hilda LohGuan 
Meeting called to order at 1:02 pm.

2. Public Comment
Opportunity for any guest or member of the public to address the Committee on
any item of SCLC business.
None

3. Consent Calendar Hilda LohGuan
(ACTION)
All items on the consent calendar may be approved by a single motion. Any
Committee member may request an item be removed from the consent calendar
and placed on the agenda for discussion.

EC Agenda Item 3a

4



7 yes, 0 no, 1 abstain 

4. Adoption of the Agenda       Hilda LohGuan 
The Chair adopted the agenda as presented, without objection. 

5. Budget Status Report for FY 2024/25 Andy Beck
(DISCUSSION)
Controller, Andy Beck, presented the Budget Status Report for fiscal
year 2024/25, reflecting reconciled bank statements through August 31,
2024.

6. CLSA FY 2024/25 Plan of Service Update Christine Powers 
(DISCUSSION) 
Executive Director, Christine Powers, presented an update for the SCLC 
2024/25 Plan of Service.  

7. Member Requested Discussion Regarding Hilda LohGuan
Employee Compensation and Budget
(ACTION)
Council Member Nikki Winslow presented her report to the Executive Committee.

a. MSP (Walker-Lanz/Bautista) to change the description of the current budget line
item of “Health Insurance – Current Employees” to “Health Insurance Allotment”, keep
it as one line item, and have details and breakdown included in the notes of the
budget.
8 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain

b. MSP (Nasr/ Walker-Lanz) to create an ad hoc committee to review and revise the
Employee Handbook. The group will consist of Jesse Walker-Lanz and Many Nasr;
Leila Hassen will be added to the group if staff confirms that three members will not
trigger quorum for the committee.
8 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain

c. MSP (Nasr/Behle) to not have a closed session to review and discuss current
employee contracts and benefit packages.
8 yes, 0 no, 0 abstain

8. Other Hilda LohGuan 
“...that is, matters initiated in the present meeting.” Robert’s Rules of Order, 
Revised, III, p.21. Limited by Brown Act to discussion only. 
None 

9. Adjournment Hilda LohGuan 
MSP (Walker-Lanz/Nasr) to adjourn the meeting at 2:10 pm.

a. Minutes of the August 22, 2024, Executive Committee regular meeting MSP
(Cuyugan/ Hassen) to pass the Consent Calendar, as presented.

5



 
 

 
 
   

 
 

 
EC Agenda Item 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 

 
DATE:  November 21, 2024   
FROM: Andy Beck, Controller 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Status Report for FY 2024/25 (DISCUSSION) 
 
BACKGROUND:  Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2024/25 is attached for review 
and reflects reconciled bank statements through September 30, 2024. 
 
For revenues, membership dues of $241,103 were recorded as financial resources 
available for use. Other revenues include communication and delivery of $507,005, 
system administration of $18,051, fiscal and administrative revenues of $55,613, grant 
revenues of $147,147, and investment returns of $38,320 which were recorded as 
respective expenses were recognized. 
 
Expenses include communications and delivery of $507,005, personnel expenses of 
$363,262, other administrative expenses of $24,745, and grant expenses of $89,255. 
These expenses do not reflect what was paid but amounts that were incurred. 
 
The “Medical Insurance – Current Employees” line item description in the budget report 
was recently changed to “Health Insurance Allotment” based on direction received at 
the last Executive Committee meeting in October. Additionally, a note has been 
included for this line item to provide a breakdown of expenses to indicate health 
premium expenses of $3,075 and IRS §457 employer employee contributions of $9,199. 
 
As of September 30, 2024, the System has a surplus of $36,584 and cash balance and 
investments totals $2,822,936. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Informational item only  

6



EXHIBITS: 
a. Budget Status Report
b. Bank Statements September 2024

7



Southern California Library Cooperative

Budget Status Report

September 30, 2024

Approved

Actual Budget Actual Amount Percent Percent

FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 24/25 Unrealized Unrealized Realized Note

Revenues:

CLSA baseline revenue (communications and delivery) 436,575$         936,245$         507,005$         429,240$         46% 54%

CLSA system administration 139,900            72,204              18,051              54,153              75% 25%

Fiscal and administration revenues 221,285            222,102            55,613              166,489            75% 25%

Grant project revenues 1,918,829        590,002            89,255              500,747            85% 15%

Grant indirect revenues 154,802            66,103              10,802              55,301              84% 16%

Grant staffing revenues 167,702            71,014              47,090              23,924              34% 66%

Membership dues 237,066            241,805            241,103            702 0% 100% Lump sum billing

Califa membership dues 13,590              13,590              13,590              ‐  0% 100% Lump sum billing

Investment income 115,955            100,000            38,320              61,680              62% 38% Reported quarterly

Other 1,867                1,000                22  978  98% 2%

Total revenues 3,407,571        2,314,065        1,020,851        1,293,214        56% 44%

Expenditures:

CLSA baseline expenditures:

V Office supplies 6,977                8,500                1,250                7,250                85% 15%

V Duplication and photocopies 1,439                1,500                360 1,140                76% 24%

V E‐Resources 321,638            811,305            478,088            333,217            41% 59%

V Contract services for delivery 63,026              70,000              17,686              52,314              75% 25% Reliant

Contract services 19,250              20,565              3,060                17,505              85% 15% Audit; GASB 75

Telecommunications 24,245              24,375              6,561                17,814              73% 27% Internet; website; IT; Phone; VOIP; Zoom

Total CLSA baseline expenditures 436,575            936,245            507,005            429,240            46% 54%

CLSA administration expenditures:

Personnel

Salary and wages 626,536            542,030            144,509            397,521            73% 27%

Retirement benefits 60,668              58,591              15,774              42,817              73% 27%

Unfunded pension liability 146,217            179,143            173,314            5,829                3% 97% Discount with one time payment

Health insurance allotment 55,083              47,040              12,274              34,766              74% 26% Health premium = 3,075 / SIP457 = 9,199

Health insurance ‐ retired employees 44,973              34,326              13,342              20,984              61% 39%

Dental and vision 5,236                4,053                1,014                3,039                75% 25% Ameritas

Life insurance 1,554                1,190                353 837 70% 30% Lincoln; Dearborn

Other personnel expenses 15,034              14,544              2,682                11,862              82% 18% Payroll tax; Workers comp

Total personnel expenditures 955,301            880,917            363,262            517,655            59% 41%

Other

V Payroll processing 6,950                500 446 54  11% 89% Service ended July 2024

Accounting software 4,118                3,000                616 2,384                79% 21%

Office space rent 25,716              21,000              5,040                15,960              76% 24%

Insurance 2,373                2,500                601 1,899                76% 24%

V Travel/conference/meeting 8,075                10,000              274 9,726                97% 3%

Membership dues 13,943              14,600              13,815              785 5% 95%

V Legal 6,560                5,000                3,160                1,840                37% 63%

V Other 2,015                1,500                793  707  47% 53%

Total other expenditures 69,750              58,100              24,745              33,355              57% 43%

Total CLSA administration expenditures 1,025,051        939,017            388,007            551,010            59% 41%

Grant project expenditure 1,918,829        590,002            89,255              500,747            85% 15%

Total expenditure 3,380,455        2,465,264        984,267            1,480,997        60% 40%

Deficit of revenues over expenditures 27,116$            (151,199)$        36,584$            (187,783)$        124% ‐24%

Chase 590,170$        

Local Agency Investment Fund 167,831           

CA Employer's Pension Prefunding Trust 100,331           

US Treasuries 1,964,604       

Total 2,822,936$     

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

eMaterials ‐$                  224,189$         ‐$                  224,189$        

Contracted services ‐ 20,565              (3,060)               17,505             

Telecommunications ‐ 15,931              ‐ 15,931             

Delivery ‐  28,137              ‐  28,137             

‐$                  288,822$         (3,060)$            285,762$        

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

eMaterials 445,532$         ‐$                  (1,333)$            444,199$        

Office supplies 10,000              ‐ (1,610)               8,390               

Delivery 41,863              ‐  (17,686)            24,177             

497,395$         ‐$                  (20,628)$          476,766$        

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

eMaterials 337,103$         ‐$                  (337,103)$        ‐$                 

eLearning 64,196              ‐ (64,196)            ‐

Telecommunication 9,274                ‐  (6,562)               2,713               

410,573$         ‐$                  (407,860)$        2,713$             

Beginning Addition Deletions Ending

eMaterials 75,456$            ‐$                  (75,456)$         ‐$                 

75,456$            ‐$                  (75,456)$         ‐$                 

FISCAL YEAR 2021‐22

SCLC ACCOUNT BALANCES

CLSA FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR 2024‐25

FISCAL YEAR 2023‐24

FISCAL YEAR 2022‐23

EC Agenda Item 5a

8



EC Agenda Item 5b

9



10



11



12



13



14



 
 

EC Agenda Item 6  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 
 

DATE:  November 21, 2024  
FROM: Christine Powers, Executive Director, SCLC 
 
SUBJECT: SCLC Annual Planning Meeting (ACTION) 
    
BACKGROUND:  The Southern California Library Cooperative’s (SCLC) strategic plan 
calls for an annual planning session of the Administrative Council. In January of this 
year, SCLC held its annual planning session, during which a facilitator worked with the 
Council to help develop its mission and vision statements. An annual planning session 
can be scheduled for 2025 at the direction of the Council. The goal would be to hold this 
session in the first quarter of the calendar year. Staff could work with the Chair and the 
Membership Engagement Ad Hoc Committee to set the agenda for this meeting.  
 
There is an opportunity to utilize funding from California Libraries Learn (CALL) towards 
obtaining a presenter/trainer for this meeting, should the Council be interested. CALL, a 
collaborative project of the California Library Association and the California State 
Library, is currently providing an opportunity for libraries to host learning events by 
providing financial support. Local CALL is a program intended to provide support for 
customized training at the regional level, as well as to encourage networking and 
connections between libraries with similar training needs. The use of California 
trainers/presenters is also encouraged.  
 
Local CALL events must be hosted by a California public library or library cooperative. 
However, staff from other library types may be invited to participate. Those interested 
may apply for financial support up to $5,000. Funds may be used for presenters/trainers 
and facility fees, if the event happens outside of the host library. The host library must 
invite other library staff within its region or cooperative library system. Local CALL 
cannot support training for a single library jurisdiction, such as a staff training day. The 
host library will handle registration, promotion, logistics and distribution of a required 
LSTA evaluation. Additionally, CALL staff can provide guidance and assistance on 
topics and presenters when requested. 
 

15



Local CALL interest forms will be accepted starting October 24 and reviewed on a 
rolling basis until December 31, 2024. All Local CALL events must be complete by July 
31, 2025. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Dependent on the success of obtaining funding from the Local CALL 
opportunity. Currently, there is $5,000 in the budget for use towards this annual 
planning session. Any eligible funds obtained through Local CALL would be utilized first, 
then the budgeted funds currently on hand.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Provide a recommendation to the Administrative Council on 
whether an annual planning session of the Administrative Council should be held in 
2025, and if so, request that the Membership Engagement Ad Hoc Committee, along 
with the Chair, work to set the agenda of the meeting.  
 
EXHIBITS: None 

16


	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Agenda_11212024.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Action_Items_Form.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_03a_Minutes_Draft_10242024.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_05_Budget_Status_Staff_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_05a_Budget_Status_Report.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_05b_Budget_Statement_Bank_Statements.pdf
	SCLC_FY2425_EC_Item_06_Annual_Planning_Meeting_Staff_Report.pdf



